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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gavel) ... I'd like to call the Public Works and Facilities Committee
meeting for July 5, 2007 to order. I'd like to say good morning to all and I hope everybody had
a great Fourth of July. I'd like to introduce the Council Members that are here this morning.
Vice-Chair Danny Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Budget and Finance Chair, Mr. Joe Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good morning, sir.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And our Chair, Mr. Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Our Co-Chair Bill Medeiros is excused today and I am the Co-Chair Mike
Victorino. So thank you, Members, for being here. I'd like to introduce our staff. First of all,
our analyst--he ran away--Scott Jensen and Pauline Martins. Our Department people here are,
first of all, the Administrative Representative is Tamara Horcajo from the Parks and Recreation.
Good morning.
MS. HORCAJO: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Corp. Counsel Michael Hopper. Good morning, Mike. And also, Pat
Matsui from the Parks and, and Recreation Department. Thank you for all being here.

PWF-31

REOUEST FOR WAIVER OF PARK DEDICATION REOUIREMENTS FOR
THE KIHEI KAUHALE SUBDIVISION (KIHEI) (C.C. No. 07-119)

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Our first item will be PWF-31. At this time, I'd like to open up for public
testimony. If anyone wants to speak on any of the matters, or the matter of PWF-31, I would
calion anyone who would like to speak. Pauline, is there any?
MS. MARTINS: No.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: No public testimony? Members, if it is okay, I will leave public testimony
open for a little while, if that's okay with the Members. I see them all shaking their heads, so I
guess it's okay. We, our first item today will be PWF-31. The Committee is in receipt of
County Communication No. 07-119, from the Director of Parks and Recreation, transmitting a
proposal, proposed resolution entitled "APPROVING THE WAIVER OF CERTAIN PARK
REQUIREMENTS FOR A PRIVATELY OWNED AND MAINTAINED PARK PURSUANT
TO SECTION 18.16.320, MAUl COUNTY CODE, FOR THE KIHEI KAUHALE
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SUBDIVISION, KIHEI, MAUl, HAWAll". The proposed, the purpose of this proposed
resolution is to waive the requirements to provide a parking area and comfort station for a
privately-owned and maintained park located to the adjacent Waipuilani Road in the Kihei
Kauhale Subdivision, Kihei, Hawaii, comprised of approximately 10.5.01 square feet, and
identified as TMK: (2) 3-9-46:014. At this time, I would like to ask the Parks and Recreation
Director, Ms. Horcajo, to give us an overview. I note here that Mich Hirano from Munekiyo &
Associates {sicJ has a prepared PowerPoint on this item and we will now--if that's okay with
Ms. Horcajo--call a brief recess and we'll lower the screen and reconvene in two minutes. I
caIl this Committee meeting in recess. . .. (gavel) ...
RECESS;

9:09 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:10 a.m.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gavel)... We reconvene the meeting. Right now, we have a
PowerPoint that's going to be presented by Mich Hirano from Munekiyo. If you, Members, if
you have questions, we can ask questions during the presentation, or we can wait until after the
PowerPoint and ask questions at that time. So I'll leave it open to your discretion. So if you go
ahead, Mr. Hirano.

• •. BEGIN PRESENTATION . ..

MR. HIRANO: Thank you, Chair Victorino. Good morning, Chair Victorino and Committee
Members. My name is Mich Hirano with Munekiyo & Hiraga, and our firm is assisting the
applicant with the request for a waiver of certain park requirements for the Kihei Kauhale
Subdivision park. We've prepared a briefPowerPoint presentation for the Committee Members
just to provide some background information on the landscape park improvements that were
made at the Kihei Kauhale Subdivision.
I'm just trying to advance the ... (pause) ... I'm just having a little technical difficulty trying
to advance the--oh, that arrow--I'm sorry. Oh, the right arrow. Pressing the wrong arrow. The
Kihei KauhaJe Subdivision is located on Waipuilani Road in Kihei. This is the project site. It's
adjacent, or adjacent to the Meadowlands Subdivision to the south. There's a vacant parcel, a
seven-acre parcel to the west of the project site. This is Lipoa Street or Liloa Street, which is
part of the North-South Collector. And Waipuilani Street is a connector road between South
Kihei Road and Piilani Highway. And there's a right-in and right-out turn at Piilani Highway
on Waipuilani Road.
This is, again, the subject parcel, a seven-acre parcel. Waipuilani Road is on the north side of
the parcel and Liloa Drive is on the eastern side of the parcel. Meadowlands Subdivision is to
the south. And this is South Kihei Road to the left of the screen. The subdivision is a 23-lot,
single-family subdivision. The, uh, currently the, there are five homes under construction in
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the subdivision. The common area improvements have been turned over to the homeowner's
assososo [sic], homeowners association. And there are two entrance and access routes, ingress
and egress into the subdivision through, providing access to the lots within the subdivision.
The park is approximately 10,500 square feet. It's a linear landscape park and it runs parallel to
East Waipuilani Road. The improvements that were made by the applicant or subdivision
developer was a sidewalk. And you'll see in the next slide sidewalk along Waipuilani Road.
This is the linear park. As you can see it's landscaped. There will be further improvements
made within the linear park. There will be a gate from Waipuilani leading into the park and
there will be two park benches on either side of the park for people who will be using the park
and will have a place to rest.
Again, this is looking at the park from the driveway into the subdivision and this is looking east
towards Haleakala. And, and this is the linear park. And this is the corner, the western portion
ofthe park. And there is right now a gate into the park from this particular, uh, roadway.
That just concludes our presentation. It gives you an idea of what the park features are, where
the park is located. The, as you can see from the photograph that the linear park provides an
open space and visually pleasing amenity to the neighborhood and to the pedestrians walking
along Waipuilani Road.
The applicant proposes to complete the park improvements with, as I mentioned, a gateway
into the park from Waipuilani Road, a cinder walkway along the park, and two park benches in
the eastern and western portions of the park. Thank you. And if you have any questions I'll be
available to answer.

. .. END PRESENTA TION ...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Members, before we take the PowerPoint down, is there any specific
questions you'd like to ask the applicant?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I can wait.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: You can wait? Okay. Then if that's, I will recess and readjourn, readjourn
as soon as we reconfigurate the meeting room. This committee meeting stands in recess .
. . . (gavel) ...
RECESS:

9:16 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:17 a.m.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gavel) . .. Reconvene the meeting. Members, at this time, I'll open
the floor to questions. Mr. Hirano, would you like to maybe take the podium if there's specific
questions for you? I will allow you to be at the podium so the Members can ask you directly,
please. Members, I open the floor to questions. Vice-Chair Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you, thank you very much. And the question would
be for the Department.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just to get a better understanding of what we're looking at in terms of
the picture of the park that was provided to, to the Committee. This obviously looks like part
of a drainage or part of a catchment area just based on its configuration. In, in regards to the
Department, can, can you tell me how this would qualifY as a park?
MS. HORCAJO: The PowerPoint that we just viewed does show that this area and, 00, some of this
question, Councilmember Mateo, I will be referring to Mr. Matsui because both of these
projects have been in the works for some time. And I believe that there is some clarification
needed in our park assessment ordinance for both the developer and the Department. Currently,
our Department does have, 00, a draft out for assistance in clarifYing that park assessment
ordinance. And that will be coming to you as well.
This particular, the two projects that are in front of you today, I do have a small history on
them, but I think Mr. Matsui can give you a little better background information. Because I
believe that the assessment of land was requested by the Kihei Community Association instead
of accepting money, as I understand it, at that time and that's why the land was accepted. For
its particular use, I think that as a County along walkways, collector roads, we do want to look
at, you know, where our land will have access to the public, maybe some park benches, and/or a
restroom if we have a walking path or a bus stop close by. But depending on the size of the
property and the assessment to the developer or landowner, we have to look at how we're going
to partner to make those walkways happen or areas happen.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and, and ...
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MS. HORCAJO: So, specifically for this one may I refer this question to Mr. Matsui? I did just want
to give you a background on what we're trying to do as a Department is to clarify the
assessment issues so that the developer upfront has a better understanding of what the
requirements are.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Horcajo.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Before I go on, if! may, with the Member's approval. I will close public
testimony on this particular item PWF -31.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: No objections. Thank you. So, public testimony on Item PW, PWF-3l
will be closed. Go ahead continue, Mr. Matsui, please. Thank you.
MR. MATSUI: Okay. Thank you. And when this subdivision came in for discussion, the
Department's policy in Kihei, just Kihei, because of the Kihei Community Association, their,
their stance was for parks was no matter how small that they wanted us to accept land. So, we
initiated discussions with the developer. At that time, the requirement was, you know, well,
what, a little over 10,000 square feet. And so, we looked at, you know, the, the location and,
and ... um ... that was the parcel that they ended up.
However, at no time, did the developer indicate to us that this was going to have any drainage,
be used for drainage. In fact, the unilateral agreement with the developer says that number one,
the use of the park will be restricted to park purposes, and two, that adequate drainage be
provided. So, you know, you know, in my mind that precludes any drainage being put onto the
property.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And is there a difference ...you know, I look at this and I don't know,
you know, you just said this was a park, a useable park. And when you look at how it appears,
useable in terms of perhaps passive use only is probably where this piece is, yeah, in terms of
use.
MR. MATSUI: That's correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And the community, this is what the community wanted? As
long as they got a piece it didn't matter if it was an actual useable park, active versus, versus
passive?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct. Yes. We've had some parks in Kihei where it was like 2,000 square
feet.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Okay. Well, it's just, it's just that if you're going to develop a
park in a, in a residential area, it should, we should come up with a standard. Because what
we're getting, you know, we went to Lahaina, we, we get catchment areas. We get drainage
areas. You know and, and we got to be a realistic. A park is a park. Let's define it. Be it a
pocket park or a larger park it's got to be defined. Otherwise, we're going to end up with things
like this that I do not consider it to be a park. If you want a place for people to sit down on two
benches then fine, but let's define it, define, define what we're talking about as a park.
MR. MATSUI: Okay. Since, recently, well, you know, our policies have evolved and, and we're not
accepting passive parks, you know, for two reasons: one, the fee amount has increased so, you
know, we're taking that money to develop active parks either existing or if we need, need to
purchase that's, that's a fund that we could go to. And, and right now our emphasis is passive,
active parks. So, we're looking at, you know, at least one acre that's level that, that you could,
you know, have even soccer game for small, young, the younger groups or even like T-ball kind
of practice, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So that, but that-MR. MATSUI: That would be our minimum.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That practice had come in after the submission of this project?
MR. MATSUI: Yes. This, this was like early 2000, 2002 I think it was.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Matsui, ma'am. Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. Mr. Pontanilla, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. As I read the title of this particular
item, the park is going to be privately, privately-owned, privately-maintained. So what's the
liability for the County in this, in this regards other than approving the waiver of certain park
requirements meaning probably the bathroom, parking?
MR. MATSUI: Our standard condition is that, you know, the developer or the landowners be held
responsible for maintenance and liability.
And that's one reason we're going to
privately-owned, privately-maintained.
MR. HIRANO: Can I?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. As we move forward and, and, you know, you
mentioned, Ms. Horcajo mentioned earlier that we're taking a look as far as the definition in
regards to what is a park? I've noticed that, you know, in certain areas in Central Maui we do
have, in fact, in Kihei also, we do have a large piece of property that's basically identified as a
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drainage property that is being used as an active park for a soccer field or soccer players,
probably Little League. And here in Central Maui, we have one just down the street. And, and,
you know, every day I pass by and, and that park is well-maintained. So, how do you consider
those kind of park? The, is the County going to be taking a look as far as accepting those kind
of park or are, are we going to go what you just mentioned as privately-owned,
privately-maintained in, in that regard?
MS. HORCAJO: Currently, the park assessment ordinance states that a project can't double dip.
Meaning if it's required for drainage or required for setback, it carmot be used for park credit.
And those are things that we need to continually remember and clarifY with the developer. If
it's being used as a drainage, it carmot be used for park. And I think as, as Pat said we're all
getting a little clearer, but the assessment still needs to be a little clearer on that as well. Did
you want to add something?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. We're, we're looking at a situation where we could have a win-win situation
... urn ... where even though an area is used for drainage they, they can engineer it so there's
minimal impact to the users. One of the requirements would be that you have an underground
drainage system that would catch your normal 10-year flood. And then the parcel will be a
basin that, you know, the bottom of it would be flat. And that would catch the 50-year,
one-hour flood, which would happen once every 50 to 100 years. And, and also that, they give
more land than it is required and, and not a one-to-one.
And, and there's one subdivision that we worked with the developer in Kihei, I think it's Alii
Kai Subdivision where they're giving us more than double the amount of land. We are only
maintaining the bottom of it. Your normal flood you're never going to see the water. And
they're putting in restrooms, a restroom and two parking lots that is going to be on top of the
bank. And if, if you look it you would not recognize it as a drainage type of basin. But
something like that, you know, is a win-win situation.
Others, in the past, where, you know, whenever it rains you're going to see water in the park,
you know. You know it doesn't work...especially sometimes the water comes from areas
that's not within the area it comes up from the mountain. So, it may not be raining at the lower
levels but then it's raining at the upper levels and, and you'll see the water in the park. So, you
know, that's something we don't like. So that's where we're evolving to.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. One, one more question.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: But before you ask that question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Sure.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Members, it would be all right to let Mr. Hirano go or do you guys think
you'd have questions for Mr. Hirano?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I have a question.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: You have a question? Okay. Hang on, Mr. Hirano.
MR. HIRANO: Okay.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. In reviewing the plans of subdivisions or any
developments and the location of the park in, in this case here you mentioned that, you know,
you guys didn't have the chance to review or take note of the elevations, you know, in this
particular park area. Do you guys normally review like say drainage plans or, or elevations of
the property in regards to the park area?
MR. MATSUI: Normally, we have to sigu off on a landscaping plan, irrigation plan, and grading plan.
The plans we saw did not indicate any kind of, you know, hole in the ground, sump.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This would be for the consultant, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: On Page 7, south view, this Committee recognizes that you have a
portable lavatory outside of the fence line. Is that part of the, this linear park?
MR. HIRANO: No. Councilmember Hokama, that I believe there's a, on the other side of the street
for that house that was under construction I believe it's for a, the construction workers, that
portable washroom.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And if this should move forward looking at the slope of the, this
linear or lateral--I don't know what we call it, lateral park, linear park? Would you be able to
meet ADA requirements regarding the slope and everything else for public use?
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MR. HIRANO: That will be reviewed by the engineer and la.'1dscape architect. But I understand that
that will be a requirement that any improvements and equipment such as a park bench will have
to be ADA accessible. And so, that will be engineered as part of the improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Did the, did your client reach an earlier agreement with the
Department that this would, is what would be constructed?
MR. HIRANO: I was not directly involved in those agreements but I understand that it was a linear
park and I wasn't, I'm not sure about the requirements, the drainage requirements. However, I
would like to just add that prior to this meeting, I did speak with the engineer, Otomo
Engineering.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. HIRANO: And they had always shown this as a drainage area in their plans they said. The other
is that in terms of the capacity, there is subsurface storage for drainage in this area. So that the
capacity for the drainage was calculated for the one-hour, 50-year storm. The requirement for
that was a 15 cubic feet per second capacity. They've increased that capacity for their
subsurface drainage capacity to 20 cubic feet per second. So that there is additional storage
under the subsurface detention area so that standing water will not be prevalent in this area, you
know, on the regular storms. There's more than capacity that has been designed for this.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Hirano, just so we understand clearly. If you look at Page 6 on
the east view of your presentation.
MR. HIRANO: Yes
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It appears there is a decline from south to north. Would that be a
correct assessment on this Committee's part?
MR. HIRANO: Decline? I, could you...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It slopes down. . .. (inaudible) ...
MR. HIRANO: Yes. Yes, it does slope down.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It appears to be sloping down.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Because I just find it interesting on your Page 7, south view,
you have a catchment, which is at the top then of the incline. Is that--oh, I see Mr. Matsui
going no. That's not true?
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MR. HIRANO: I think that. ..
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Isn't that one drainage catchment right there, Page 7?
MR. HIRANO: There's a, if you look at the south view No.7 there is a catch basin at the bottom of
the slope. On top I believe, I'm not, I, when I, I was at the site and J think that that is a access
manhole or a maintenance to the drainage system. But there is a, there are some facilities there
that for maintenance purposes. And as well, it could be the irrigation system. Councilmember
Hokama, you're looking at the, kind of, it looks like utility covers that are on the top of that
little ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm looking at a grate ...
MR. HIRANO: Oh, the grate is a catchment basin, which is in the center of the photograph.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And then you have another catchment at the bottom of this linear
park?
MR. HIRANO: I think that...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We don't have that north view so.
MR. HIRANO: Oh, I sorry. I'm not aware of anything on the north, on the east side of that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Mr. Hirano, as representative of your client tell us
exactly what you asking this Committee for this morning.
MR. HIRANO: The request is to waive certain park requirements for the Kihei Subdivision and
according to the ordinance it's comfort station and parking lot. That is that a waiver to provide
a comfort station and a parking lot for the linear park.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And the size of this current park is?
MR. HIRANO: Approximately 10,500 square feet.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that is the amount that the Parks Department calculated as a
fair amount of land for this purpose? Chairman, if Mr. Matsui or the Department may respond
to that, please.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. Please, Mr. Matsui. Thank you, Mr. Hirano.
MR. HIRANO: Oh, I'm...
MR. MATSUI: Yeah.
MR. HIRANO: It's 500 square feet per unit was the requirement.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. HIRANO: This 23 lot subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, we, we expect what, 10,000-MR. HIRANO: 10,000.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --11,000.
MR. MATSUI: 10,000. Twenty-three lots minus three that's 20 times 500.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: How did you minus three?
MR. MATSUI: That's part of the ordinance is you minus the first three lots.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: So, 23 total lot minus three that's 20 times 500 square feet comes out to 10,000 square
feet.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And that is on the assumption that we would get a comfort
station and parking for that 10,000 square feet, too?
MR. MATSUI: Well the ordinance requires drainage, irrigation, grading, grassing. It also requires
restroom and parking. But, however, that can be waived by the County Council for the
restroom and parking, and provided that the Department considers it either unnecessary or not
required ... (end aftape, start lB at 9:38 a.m.). .. you know, for a passive use.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MR. MATSUI: You know, we felt a restroom and parking lot is not necessary.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. East Waipuilani Road, what is the, the width of the road
please? You guys, you guys have a understanding of the width? What I'm coming at is if this
is going to move forward, I would assume some people would be, like in picture five, be
parking on the side of the sidewalk to utilize that area. And my concern is if we allow the
parking there, I would hate for this be another lao Parkside, because right now you carmot get
through the collector road without crossing the medial line, medial strip. And so, you riding on
two lanes because of the way parking is on that roadway. Are we facing the same situation
here? Because that I won't tolerate.
MR. MATSUI: Uh, I know on the development half of Waipuilani Street you have, you know, for
two-lane traffic and sidewalk and also on-street parking on that half ofWaipuilani Street.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, thank you very much for my opportunity.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO:
Mr. Pontanilla?

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Any other questions from the Members?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. What is the cost to construct a bathroom for a park
of this size or, or maybe a little larger than this size? I know the one at Keopuolani Park cost
about a half a million dollars. How much a small bathroom would cost for any park?
MR. MATSUI: For a bathroom much smaller than our standard probably about $200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And to rent out a portable what would be the cost?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, I'm not sure. Hundred, 150 a month.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any other questions, Members? I have a
couple that 1'd like to, to bring up. First of all, to the, to Mr. Hirano, this park really the only
use I can see in here--and correct me if I'm wrong--is somewhat of someone go in there and
sitting down and relaxing or sitting down and enjoying the shade or if, you know, once these
trees grow out, right?
MR. IDRANO: Yes.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I mean it couldn't be used for even to take your son or daughter there to
playa little T-ball or a little soccer. I mean this wouldn't be a very good park to be used, right?
MR. HIRANO: No, Chair Victorino.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And was that the reason for the design for flooding purposes or was it just
the natural topography and you guys didn't want to invest any fill in to make it a level park?
MR. HIRANO: That's correct. It was always envisioned to be a passive linear park, provide open
space in it as well. An area of I guess comfort and just tranquil kind of contemplation for
someone walking and just being able to enter the area and, and sit. That's about what was
contemplated for it.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: But like a lot of subdivisions being built and around that area that will be
built, you'll have young children that, you know, would kind of want to play T-ba\l and come
out and maybe play some catch with their friends. And a park like this almost becomes not
really useable for, for that kind of purpose. And I just feel like sometimes some of the
agreements we when I agree, I echo the same sentiments as my fellow member as, you know,
not for the use of the people. You know and again it's really hard because you coming behind
the, the original agreements. But in the future, I think this Committee and others will, and the
Parks will
will really have to take a hard look at these things. Because if we're
going to have a park, the park should be useable for the community and, and those around there
especially. And if you've got children now I just don't see much use of this. I mean I guess I'd
have fun if I had some cardboard and I could slide down the hill. I think that would be a lot of
fun but beyond that. And again making it a drainage, off, offshoot of drainage systems or
something like that also is not going to be acceptable. And we've had run ins with that.
The last thing I agree with Chair Hokama is the fact that the parking. Because right now at lao
Parkside you're right, it is, and I drive that road everyday, it is a challenge. And you not only
have vehicles parked but you got trucks, you got boats, you got all kind of things. And I guess
it belongs to the people in the area but they're using the street for a parking facility. And I think
that's very uncalled for and not necessary. So, I agree if this is not wide enough and people are
going to be parking there that just creates another, you know, potential hazard not only for the
people who live there but anybody, you know, walking, crossing the street. Kids especially
they don't look. And if cars are blocking their way, you don't see 'em until they dart out into
the road and that could be very tragic, yeah. Anyhow, thank you., Mr. Hirano.
MR. HIRANO: Thank you, Chair Victorino.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Uh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. Mr. Hokama
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. For the Department, please.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What would be your response to the distance to a more active
recreational area from this subdivision, please? Would that be the Aquatic Center area on Lipoa
Street by Kihei Elementary? Would that be the closest what we would consider active park for
the youth and residents of this project?
MR. MATSUI: I think it's kind of in the middle of the old Kihei School by Suda Store and the, uh,
swimming pool.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is there a way?
MR. MATSUI: It's kind of midway. It's along Waipuilani Street. Maybe it's a little closer to the pool
and community center.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The Aquatic Center? Where we, swimming pool?
MR. MATSUI: Aquatic Center. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And then when you mention the old Kihei School that's the
one on South Kihei Road? Is that the. . . that's just so we get our locations squared away.
Okay. Okay. In estimation you would consider that what Y:, a mile, % mile distance?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. I would, I would say ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm just trying to get a sense of how far like the, the, if, you know,
I'm assuming there going to be families. So how far would the, their, their children need to, to
travel-MR. MATSUI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
soccer?

--for an active park area whether it be for T-ball, basketball,

MR. MATSUI: Yeah, I would say Y:, a mile to % of a mile.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. You're our professional, Mr. Matsui, and, and we have our
Director Horcajo. You know I consider this a beautiful, landscaped drainage easement. Does
this satisfY the Department as a park, a passive park? Because if it's not we need to know so
that we can make appropriate decisions and help this project reach one resolution even if it's
something else than what we have before us today.
MR. MATSUI: Okay. Let me answer it this way. At the time when this project was just brought to
the Department, we were accepting passive parks. And this was part of the wishes of the Kihei

- 15-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Melli
July 5,2007

community. However, the drainage issue was, is something we don't agree with. But since
then, you know, the community has grown. We, as far as Kihei, South Maui, we're way behind
in active parks. There is a strong need. So, since then we've changed our policy for the
smaller, instead of taking passive small parks we're taking cash.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So that we can develop-MR. MATSUI: So, we can develop active parks.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --the active parks for the youth programs or whatever it may be.
MR. MATSUI: Yes, and...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And provide the proper facilities-MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --for our users. Okay. But nonetheless, we are here at this point in
time to make a decision on whether or not we're going to agree or not agree. You know, even if
this was from 2000, 2000. And so whatever assumptions they went that Council never agreed
to those assumptions. And so, I would say I wouldn't consider that with much weight. I'm
done, Chairman. I await your proposal to the Committee. Thank you very much.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. IfI could ask Mr. Hirano a follow-up question.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: You may. Go ahead. Mr. Hirano.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. During your presentation you indicated that in the park
itself there would be two benches placed strategically within the park. If in fact this is a park
intended for community use, are you just looking at two benches or is it bench with table so
people can actually use it or, you know, what goes in here to actually make this a park?
MR. HIRANO: I guess the facility and equipment that will be used by the public, and park benches
seemed to be appropriate for the size of the park and the orien ... , or the, I guess, the linear
nature of the park. If the Council would and, and Committee recommends that park picnic
table and benches be provided then that, that will be done.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I think, Mr. Hirano, that if it actually came forward with the park
concept where you have picnic tables and benches to me would be a lot easier than to just have
benches along what I consider to be a drainage area. You know I think it's a little more

- 16-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
July 5, 20117

palable [sic] at that point then having us tell you this is what you should do. Because if that's
the intent I can tell you this is not acceptable.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, you know, in the future, I would like you to tell us because this is
your baby, this is your plan.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And so, I'm still having problems with this park. Chairman, thank
you.
MR. HIRANO: Okay. Yes, Councilmember Mateo.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Members, any other comments or questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead. Mr. Hokarna.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: May I have a short recess so I can confer with you, please?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. We'll call this meeting in recess for the, until call of the Chair.
. . . (gavel) ...

RECESS:

9:51 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:57 a.m.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gavel) ... The meeting of the Public Works and Facilities Committee
is reconvened. At this time, the Chair will ask Council Chair Hokarna. We have discussed a
few matters and we'd like to have that brought up. So, Council Chair Hokarna, would you like
to bring that forward?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for this opportunity.
Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, I would ask for this consideration regarding
Item 31 that is before us currently. Mr. Chairman, I think one is obviously for us to make a
decision on the proposal as presented currently. But I would ask this Committee to be open to
two other options. And it's, mine sterns from my concern that I view this more as a drainage
easement type of facility than a passive park facility.
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So, I would say that one option, Mr. Chairman, would be that this Committee would rec ... ,
consider that this proposal only satisfies half of the park requirements and that the second half
be fulfilled by a equal percentage, 50 percent of what is in the unilateral agreement of the full
park assessment fee of $236,000. Or of course the second option would be, Mr. Chairman, for
us to deny this and say that the way to fulfill your obligation is to present to the County the full
$236,000. But I would think to be fair to Mr. Hirano's client that this Committee might then
wish to consider a deferral, allow him the opportunity to talk to his client and to report back, so
we can make a final decision on the matter on a next agendized meeting with Item 31. That
would be my suggestion, Mr. Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair Hokama. And I concur wholeheartedly. I think there
are too many variables here and I agree that we need to go back and reassess this. And to all of
us that have looked at this pictures, and I think when you looked on the screen, it did look like a
glorified drainage system, and I think that's unacceptable for me and anyone else. Open space
is one thing but we want it so that our people can use it not only today, tomorrow but not when
every time we have a 50-year flood, 10-year flood. I don't care what. When water backs up
into that area, I don't see it leaving it very quickly and that's not what we're there for.
Ms. Horcajo, is that acceptable with you that if we defer this matter that you meet with the
representatives from this subdivision and see if these matters can be rectified?
MS. HORCAJO: We will do that as long as it's acceptable to the client and...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Hirano, I'm sorry to call upon you again but is that alright we defer
this?
MR. HIRANO: Yes. I'll discuss Councilmember Hokama's suggestion and discuss that with the client
and as well with the Parks Director and we'll come back.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And, and I want you to know, Mr. Hirano, that we're just putting all the
developers that, on notice that when you commit a park to us it must be a park and not
something that's part of a park and part of a drainage system. And I think that's the approach
this Council and the Administration is beginning to take a real hard look at. And it's nothing
personal but it's something that the people deserve and we're going to work very diligently to
make sure from now on whatever we get for the people it is for them and for that purpose not
for some other subconscious person, purpose.
MR. HIRANO: I understand the position that you've just conveyed, Chair Victorino, and I'll pass that
information on to our client as well that that is what is expected. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hirano. And I want the public to hear this and I want the
developers out there to hear that that this is very important to us that we get parks that are
useable, that are active, that are not just passive. And oh, maybe a part of a drainage system
that, you know, every time you have big rain like what we look down here in Wailuku that fills
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up with water and is not useable for a week or two or three. That's, that's not what we're, our
intent is for a park, yeah. Thank you.
MR. HIRANO: Yes, I understand your concerns. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: So, the Chair's recommendation is deferral of this matter. Any objections
to the deferral?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT: HOKAMA, MATEO,
PONTANILLA, AND VICTORINO)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Horcajo.

PWF-28

ACCEPTING LAND DEDICATED FOR PARK AND PLAYGROUND PURPOSES
AND WAIVING CERTAIN PARK DEDICATION REQUIREMENTS FQR THE
ALII VILLAGE SUBDIVISION (KIHEn (C.C. No. 06-57)

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Next item is PWF-28. This is pertaining to County Communication
No. 06-57, from the Director of Parks and Recreation, transmitting a proposed resolution to
accept the dedication of a park located adjacent to Kulanihakoi Street for the Alii Village
Subdivision, Kihei, Maui, comprised of approximately 9,027 square feet, identified as
TMK: (2) 3-9-01:155; and to approve the waiver of certain park dedication requirements. The
correspondence dated June 22, 2006, from the Department of the Corporation Counsel,
transmitting a revised proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING LAND DEDICATED FOR
PARK AND PLAYGROUND PURPOSES AND WAIVER OF PARKING AREA AND
COMFORT STATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 18.16.320, MAUl COUNTY CODE".
The purpose of this revised proposal, proposed resolution are to: (l) accept the dedication of
the referred [sicJ park for the Alii Village Subdivision; and (2) approve the waiver of
requirements to provide comfort stations and parking in the referred [sicJ park. At this time, on
this particular item, I will open up for public testimony. Pauline, anyone signed up?
MS. MARTINS: No.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Anyone in the gallery? If not, Members, I will close public testimony
without any objection.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Now, I'll ask the Parks and Recreation Director, Ms. Horcajo,
to give us an overview on this park. Go ahead, Ms. Horcajo.
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MS. HORCAJO: Thank you. Again, this is a project that's been in the works for some time. I did go
out yesterday and take some photos for you here of the current park development. I will hand
the mike over to Pat Matsui to give us a better historical. But on the top comer here, a view,
the first photograph, top left is a view of the walkway that is a part of the park dedication that
leads down to the right top photo of the park itself. The left, and this park area is 9,000 square
feet. The access itself leading into the park, that small grass way with the hibiscus hedge is
approximately 2,000 square feet. And this land did satisfy the park assessment for this
development.
The bottom left picture does not show the walkway but rather currently there's a bike path and
where the North-South Collector Road will eventually be going. So, it gives you a little idea
of, I believe, the reason that the park was accepted as park assessment was to be a area along
the North-South Collector where bikers, walkers could stop. A water fountain and benches are
part of the requirement. The water fountain and benches have not yet been installed however
as the development isn't completed.
The bottom left or the bottom right photo here shows the southeast comer of the park, which is
on the far side of the park, which shows there is a drainage way on that end of the park. And
I'll have Pat give you perhaps ~ a little more historical on this area
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, I think she summarized pretty much the key items on this. Essentially, it's, your
map show 11,000 square feet but, you know, there's a easement so it's essentially 9,000 square
feet. It is along the North-South Collector Road. The North-South Collector I think is maybe
at least four years down the road in developing. So, you know, there was ~ the depart ... , the
developer was supposed to put in a ... urn ... picnic table or park bench and ... urn ... a water
fountain. But we felt at this time if they put it in it would get vandalized and, and so they
supplied it to us and upon completion of the North-South Collector road, you know, this would
become a wayside park for that.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Anything else you'd like to add, Ms. Horcajo?
MS. HORCAJO: In addition, I guess the requirement for waiver, the Parks Department felt at that
waiver of the parking and the restroom, the Department felt like that was an excessive
requirement considering that they had given the land and the, the walkway for this development
as it is a smaller development with a cash requirement of $66,000 at that time.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. At this time, I'll open the floor for discussion from our Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, hang on. Mr. Hopper, you would like to say something? I'm sorry.
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MR. HOPPER: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted to clarifY that in addition to this land there
will also be a cash payment of $16,351.50. The, the, I just recently learned this fact. So that
the proposed resolution should probably be amended to state that the acceptance of the land is
in partial satisfaction of the Parks requirement. So there will be an additional cash contribution
if this land is accepted.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hopper. Mr. Hokama, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That was, that was one of my questions if, you know, we, we, I
think this Committee can make the better decision knowing that what is totally on the table.
So, we've heard if we went just strictly cash assessment for this project it would be $66,000. Is
that, that's a good understanding of the Committee?
MR. MATSUI: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And you would value this 9,000 square foot parcel currently
as, valued as more than $66,000?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct. At that time, you know, there's been several changes to the ordinance.
So, each subdivision was grandfathered in from, you know, the previous ordinance. So, in this
case, the assessment was really low. So, it's only $66,000. So that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, in the Department's view, the, what is on the table for this
Committee to consider is more than what was required? Since we're getting I guess that, the
easements, the park, and I guess for some, although it's not a lot we are getting some cash.
MR. MATSUI: It's not in excess but you know it meets the requirements ofthe ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. When the improvements, if we accept this, and the
improvements--and again I'm going, I'm going off a August 31, 2006 letter from your
Department signed by then Director Mr. Correa. And Director Horcajo did restate some of the
comments on this August 31 st communication. They've already put in the, I guess, the, the, the
waterline linkage from the, to the lot?
MR. MATSUI: They've put in the grassing, irrigation system, and they've planted a tree.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. You know No.3 it says the developer has roughed in the
waterline and will provide the Department with drinking fountains and, and park bench. So
that's all squared away, Mr. Correa [sic]?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. If we don't accept this and we're, and we decide to take the
cash, we are just looking at $66,000 period?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chainnan.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Further questions. Councilmember Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, fast question.
project was approved by the Planning Commission?

So the $66,000 represent when this

MR. MATSUI: The grandfather is the date of preliminary subdivision approval.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And then the previous one that we had because I'm looking at
big dollar difference, what is the difference in timeframe?
MR. MATSUI: That came a couple years later after the changes to the park dedication fee.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Thank you very much. You know just
referencing Mr. Hokama's comments on that letter from the fonner director, the August 31 st
letter.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: In that same Item No.3 that he referenced and Mr. Matsui also
reference it, the drinking fountain and the park bench these are plural, uh, these are singular
items. So, we're talking one water fountain and one bench?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: For a park that is supposed to be primarily used as a rest stop for
bikers and those traveling the North-South Collector Road that just seems, that just seems kind
of small in, in providing what the Department sees as a passive park. In addition, this is a park
that they want to dedicate to the County. Correct?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, in part of us considering the waiver because they don't have to
build a comfort station and the parking area, can the Department still deal with the, the owners
of the property in terms of them providing the maintenance and the upkeep of this park instead
of having taxpayers pay the upkeep of this park? We're waiving, we're waiving a County Code
requirement. And if we're going to waive a County Code requirement I mean what, what's the
giveback to the County? So, we waive the requirement and we assume the liability and the
responsibility of taking care of this park. So, I was just, you know, wanting to know whether or
not the Department can still have that, still have that discussion with the, the property owner.
And then the last item that I'd like to ask is just for Corporation Counsel because I don't know
any better. In the resolution itself under "be it resolved No.1". Number one reads that the
Council herein accepts the park parcel to be dedicated in fee simple for park and playground
purposes thereby fulfilling all of the requirements of section and then of the County Code. And
because it references in the whereases [sicJ prior regarding the waiver what it sums up to is we
are looking at this park and saying okay, you met all of the County requirements based on this
Code. And in essence they have not met those requirements. We have chose to waive these
requirements.
Is there another way of adding verbiage that specifically recognizes the fact that this project
like all of the rest did not fulfill County Code requirements? We have waived those issues.
MR. HOPPER: Well, the, the revised ordinance that I had drafted, I'm not sure if that's the one you're
looking at.... (end a/tape, start 2A at 10:18 a.m.) . .. specify in the, in the, the, the, beyond the
whereas clauses and the final clauses that the, there's an acceptance in fulfillment of the
requirements and it also includes a waiver of those comfort station and parking requirements.
It does specify that in the revised ordinance that I transmitted.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: That would be, Members, just for your information, the July 2, 2007 letter
from Mr. Hopper to us. And on the first page, on the resolution, Item No.2, the Council will
hereby waive the requirements to provide parking area and comfort station in pursuance of
Section 18.16.320 (E) (5), Maul County Code. So it is there.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you for the clarification. I'm looking at the, your,
your resolution prior...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) ...
MR. HOPPER: No, as you, as I said though it is, it would be proper to amend the resolution further
because as I did not know at the time there's also an additional $16,000 cash contribution. So
that wouldn't be difficult to do. It would just, all the ordinance would actually have to state
was that it was in partial satisfaction and that you are waiving the requirements. And then the
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money paid, there's a unilateral agreement with the County already that states that the money
would be paid should the land be accepted. So that would not have to be addressed in the
ordinance other than to say that it's in partial satisfaction of the requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

And, and for the Department.

Last, last question,

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: For the Department. Because the one water fountain and the one
bench is apparently being stored or until the North-South Collector Road is actually in, well,
when does the Department expect the North-South Collector Road to be in so that we can take
care of these commitments to this park?
MR. MATSUI: Okay. Our understanding it's at least four years away.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, for four years, the one fountain and the one bench going stay in
our keep until the park, I mean, the road goes in?
MR. MATSUI: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, what happens in the meantime? The meantime it's just raw land.
MR. MATSUI: In the meantime, it's a grassed area with a tree and irrigated.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, virtual open space with--so, how we can call that a park?
It's open space because there's nothing to identify it as a park.
MR. MATSUI: Well, until the North-South Collector is put in, you know, you're correct it's, it's just a
passive kind of area. You know it, it, it kind of doesn't make sense without the North-South
Collector.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. With that, I think I liked his words. It just doesn't make sense.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much. I agree. The other thing that I wanted to bring up
before I, I, I give back the Committee a chance to comment on this is I have been told by a
number of people, and, and I'd like further verification. The Kihei Community Association
would now because of the North-South Collector Road being in this area and the bikeway have
comfort station because now this park would become really more than just a passive park. It
would become a very vital part of this whole system of, of bikeways.
And I think...was is it you, Mr. Hopper, that brought that also, mentioned that to me? Maybe
not. I apologize. Well, I've been told by community members. And, Ms. Horcajo, what is
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your take on that? Have you heard the same thing from some of the Kihei Community
Association people? Go ahead.
MS. HORCAJO: Mr. Chairman, we have heard the same thing that a rest area for bikers perhaps an
eventual bus stop area would be of benefit. And having a rest station, benches, trees would be a
very nice amenity to our community to have those along our bikeways, walkways. For this
project, I think at the, at the time, the provision of that $200,000-plus restroom to be built by
the developer funds seemed excessive. However, as a County I think it's an important thing
that we start planning for and start looking for, and the Kihei community has indicated that
that's their long range vision and plan as well. And I think our Department has bought into that
plan trying to figure out now as we move forward where those areas would be in terms of the
big picture is important.
I'd just like to let you folks know that you did pass, and thank you, in the FY '08 budget,
currently, a long range planner for our Department that can better assess and hook up those
areas that were brought up by Chairman Hokama as far as how far are parks away from each
other. And this is the kind of area that might, might assist in getting our families from one park
to another on a linear bikeway or walkway. So, I believe that that is an important aspect of the
park. I'm not sure that assessing this developer that additional fund is, is fair at this time. So, I
guess that's where we're at.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Horcajo. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I have a slightly different outlook than my colleague
from Molokai. And while I would agree that we have now been informed of increased
potential for this 9,000 square foot park, the assessment was based on the subdivision that is
currently before us with the subject Alii Village. The North-South Collector Road broadens the
scope. So to place the burden now on this subdivision to, to take in account an expanded scope
of the North-South Collector Road, I would agree that is not fair.
If the County determines that there should be a comfort station there, we should pay for it not
the applicant because the applicant is satisf'ying his requirement. And the bottomline to me,
Mr. Chairman, is if we don't reach agreement, what would you as a individual opt to take? I
would rather pay the County the $66,000 and I would sell that lot and make more than my
money back and that's the choice we have. That's the choice we have because I cannot see us
putting in the North-South Collector impact on this small subdivision and this 9,000 square foot
lot. That's our job.
And that's part of the reasons why, and again, Mr. Mateo's question, the North-South Collector
would have been in if the prior Administration didn't choose to delay the project for various
reasons. So, you know, I'm, I'm looking at trying to get the best out of what we can because
for us the worst is we're going to just get $66,000, Chairman--
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Db-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --if we don't reach agreement. And unless the Department can tell
me I'm wrong in my understanding that's what I see, people, $66,000 for agreement to this.
Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank, thank you, Mr. Hokama, you bring up some very valid points and
something that, you know, I think all of the public needs to understand that if we say no to
something like this we actually lose out for the public's point of view. Yeah. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In regards to the Parks Department, you
know, taking a look at the North-South Collector Road hecause we're maybe a decade away
that I would recommend that the Department work with the Public Works Department in trying
to plan out, you know, future parks in this North-South Collector Road area. The other thing is
that whenever it come to park, dedication of park we always look at waivering [sicJ either
parking or, or bathroom facilities. In the assessment in regards to parks, do we take into
consideration the cost of these facilities when we ask for park assessments?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Horcajo or Mr. Matsui?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, I don't quite understand your question. You know the, the fee is based on the in
lieu fee, the cash is based on a formula, and that's based on the number of lots in the
subdivision. And the waiver is...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, Jet me, let me ask the question this way.
MR. MATSUI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In, in the formula, the cost of a bathroom facility, parking
facility is that part of the formula that the Parks Department utilize? Because this is what we
see most of time, waivering [sicJ of some kind facility.
MR. MATSUI: The waiver that we are recommending is for the smaller, you know, postage stamp
projects. You know a.'1ything that, you know, that you're going to have active play you're
going to need some off-street parking. You're going to need some restrooms be it small or
large. So, you know, for the larger projects we've been requiring restroom and off-street
parking.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, presently, you're going to be looking at what is a park, the
definition and hopefully you guys can take a look at this here. Because I think there's some
inequity in regards to having bathroom facilities or not even in passive parks. Thank you.
Thank you, Chair.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, maybe if I can add some historic comment. I think it
was from the Apana Administration even the Councils then agreed and approved certain
waivers because the Councils then also felt that when you're looking at small parks. And more
than likely we would consider a subdivision park 5,000 square feet, 3,000 square feet, 10,000
square feet. We had a concern of the County's need to maintain every park small or large and
facilities, and one, one, and obviously, one of the considerations we took into our deliberations
was how much is it going to cost the County? Requiring manpower, expansion of manpower,
and the operational equipment, and what have you that the Director goes through every day to
maintain all of these small subdivision parks.
We agreed that the large active parks needed to be under the full County jurisdiction. But I
think what Mr. Mateo and Mr. Pontanilla brings up today, Chairman, is very important for us to
move quickly on. And we need to make a decision what will be the line that we would consider
in the future, not even to be waived? Because we would say, they exempt, we will craft, we can
craft legislation to not even require bathroom facilities for Jet's say a parcel of 3,000 feet or
what have you because it might not make sense. Unless the property owner decides I'll keep it,
I'll dedicate it to public use but I'll keep it and I'll put up a facility because I'm going to charge
my, my subdivision owners "x" amount of maintenance fees or what have you.
I think we need to find out what would be that line, Director and Mr. Matsui. Less than Yz acre
we're going to say not required. Anything more than Y2 acre we're going to require. But I
think there comes a point where it makes sense for us to not consider full park amenities for
certain small parcels. And, and I think we need, and I, and I can appreciate Mr. Mateo saying
it's still currently part of the requirements. I agree. It's currently part of the requirements.
In the old days, subdivisions weren't, were much larger what was coming before us than what

we see here, 20-lot subdivisions, 23. We were in the past, we were looking at the hundreds of
units subdivision. So, we were getting large parcels, Mr. Chairman. And so, the scale and
scope has changed through the years and, and maybe it's time we need to adjust the Code to
reflect the changes of what is corning before the Department for park assessment fulfillment.
And I would just share that with the, the Committee this morning. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other further comments? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And I really appreciate Mister or
Chairman Hokama's comments because I think that that hits it on the head. And I think this is
why the Department is currently looking at the ordinance again because, you know, the
difference a few years make. Sixty-six thousand 'til today it's an incredible difference. So, I
have my own reservations with this project because I do not see this as an appropriate request.
However, when you tske a look at the bottom line, the dollars and cents, we would really tske a
loss if we didn't go with the waiver at this particular point in time.
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But as the Department continues to relook at the ordinance even considerations. And I believe,
I believe Mr. Pontanilla was kind of going in this direction where when you take a look at these
subdivision requests, the Code requires the park plus a comfort station and parking facilities.
And if we can look at the ordinance and do an exemption for specific pocket parks, and we've
got to be clear in defining pocket parks. I think because the, the whole, the entire Code is not
being adhered to then perhaps the consideration of in lieu or perhaps a consideration that we're
not going to provide the maintenance and the upkeep of the park. If you want an exemption or
a waiver then by all means you've got to assume that responsibility as well.
So, the Department needs to playa balancing act I think and I think that would help us alleviate
some of the pressures we now look at, because now we're stnck with having to maintain all
these additional little parks. And then just to follow up lastly on Mr. Matsui's comments on the
park itself. It is going to be seeded and just left as open space? Once we, I guess, approve this
is that, is that the Parks intention?
MR. MATSUI: Yes, it's already grassed-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It already-MR. MATSUI: --and, and with irrigation.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --so what we're looking at in your handout to us, the bottom two
pictures which is the entrance into the park area that's going to be taken care of? Because right
now it looks horrible. So, we don't have to wait until the North-South Collector Road is
actually done to actually see something that's well taken care of and, and actually seeded.
MS. HORCAJO: The, the top two pictures do indicate that it is currently being maintained with the
hibiscus hedge on the left and the mowed grass-way. That's that easement that's like a skinny
flag down to this large area that's bordered by hibiscus ,vith one shower tree in the middle.
That's the current.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, the bottom pictures.
MS. HORCAJO: The bottom pictures, the one on the right is taken looking back at the park. It shows
that there's a large drainage area on the Makena side of the park. You can see the park there in
the background. And the other photo is where the North-South Collector Road will be put.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, right now, the park itself and the easement all looks like what
you're showing here.
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chairman. I'm done.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO:
Thank you.
Any other further discussion before I make my
recommendation, gentlemen? Again, before I make my recommendation real quickly, I believe
this circumstance and this particular park in not accepting it would be very detrimental to the
County and the people of Maui County. So, I will recommend in that direction. However,
again, as I stated on the first one and I think all of us have been saying loud and clear we want
the Department to go back and revisit this. And more importantly, for developers and others to
know that when we ask for park and dedication of parks that we'll set the guidelines and
parameters, but we're not going to be so easily waiving these requirements. I think this
encumberson [sic] on us to correct and omit the necessary adjustments, but once those are done
then we're going to expect these parks to be done for the people of Maui County and done
right.
So, at this time, I would like to recommend a motion. But before I do that, do we need an
amendment, Mr. Hopper, for your statement as far as the $16,000 that is available that will be
paid to us?
MR. HOPPER: Again, Mr. Chair, the amendment wouldn't necessarily have to specifically state
there's an additional $16,000. What it would have to specifY is that this is not, it's not an
acceptance of the park in full satisfaction of the requirements. It's in partial satisfaction. And
again, that won't be difficult to add into the ordinance. So, it would be, I suppose a motion as
appropriately amended to reflect that the dedication would only be in satisfaction of a portion
of the requirements of 18.16.320 of the Code.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So, maybe the best course of action, Committee Members, would
be if I would recommend that we accept the resolution and whatever necessary amendments be
made at that time. Would that be appropriate?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) ...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman ... urn ... I would hope we can make it as clear as
possible what we would pass out of Committee.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because, one, it would help our colleagues who are not Members
of this Committee to have an understanding, good understanding of what this Committee has, is
recommending forward to Council. And I, I believe, uh, in the resolution, to be fair, I can
appreciate Corporation Counsel's comment about partial, but then I don't want it lingering that
there's a doubt that we, we still need to do more than what this Committee is considering this
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morning, Chainnan, because with the payment then if this moves forward, it does fulfill the
requirements.
And so, I, I want it to be stated clearly enough that, you know, our colleagues who are not part
of this Committee when they read the revised version understands that this with the payment
fulfills the requirements. Because I don't want us to end up in Council with this huge debate
about whether or not we fulfilling requirements since the reso is going to say we just partially
fulfilling requirements. And that would be my only concern, Chainnan. So, I would ask that
maybe mister, I don't know if your, your Analyst can come up with appropriate language but,
you know, I don't have a problem with asking for a part ... , your consideration of putting this to
the end of the calendar. Allow Scott and Corporation Counsel some time to work out some
appropriate language and return for a final detennination by the Committee.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Scott, can that be done? (NOTE: Mr. Jensen nodded.) Okay. So, at this
point, we would...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would ask for an end of calendar to put this at the end of the
calen ... , of your agenda, Chainnan, and return back for a, for, for a decision.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: If there's no objection by the other Members, I will recommend that.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Looking at the time it's approximately 10:40. Let us take a
recess until 10:55. This Committee stands in recess.... (gavel) ...
RECESS;

10:37 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:58 a.m.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gavel) ... The meeting of the Public Works and Facilities Committee
is readjoumed.

PWF-26

AMENDING CHAPTER 18.20, MAUl COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO
SUBDIVlSION IMPROVEMENTS (C.C. No. 07-95)

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: First of all, we'll be now discussing PWF-26, but before I do that, I would
like to introduce the Administrative Representative, Administration Representative Milton
Arakawa, Director of Public Works, and Ms. Young, who is with the Corporation Counsel.
And, Ms. Young, I forgot your first name that's why I couldn't. ..
MS. YOlJNG: Cindy.
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CO-CHAiR VICTORINO: Cindy. Sorry, Cindy, I forgot your first name. I had a senior moment. I
apologize. Okay. PWF-26 before we start, is there any testimony in regards to Communication
or Public Works PWF-26? Any testimony, Pauline?
MS. MARTINS: No.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Committee, we are now in receipt of County Communication No. 07-95,
from the Director of Public Works and Environmental Management, transmitting a proposed
bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 18.20, MAUl
COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS". The purpose of
this proposed bill are to: (l) delete an allowance to, for deferral of frontage improvement for a
subdivision of three lots or less; and (2) require certain minimum pavement, pavement
specifications for required improvements to existing streets resulting from this, such
subdivisions. Any public testimony at this time? Seeing none. Members, I'd like to close
public testimony on PWF-26 with no objection.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, gentlemen. At this time, I'd like to call upon the Director of
Public Works, Milton Arakawa, for an overview. Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you've mentioned this item pertains to a proposed bill
for an ordinance amending Chapter 18.20.040 of the Maui County Code relating to existing
streets. There are two portions of Chapter 18.20.040 being proposed for amendment. The first
portion is Section 18.20.040 (A). And this pertains to eliminating the, the deferral of frontage
improvements for subdivisions of three lots or less. Presently, the existing Code does not
require improvements for a consolidation of lots for a designation of an access easement for a
subdivision creating only road-widening lots and for a consolidation of three developable,
developable lots or less, which is resubdivided without creating additional developable lots.
The Code allows improvements to existing streets to be deferred for a subdivision of three lots
or less provided the subdivider agrees to pay the pro rata share of the cost of road
improvements upon the existing street pursuant to the terms of the ordinance authorizing the
improvements by the County or to a formula determined by the County taking into account
reasonable factors such as the actual cost of road improvements and the number of feet abutting
the subdivided property.
One part of the proposed amendment before you is to delete the language, which would not
require improvements for an access easement. And the reason for this change is an access
easement presently does not require subdivision approval. And the access easements we're
referring to here only concerns access easements which do not involve County owned land.
The proposed deletion of language to allow deferral of improvements to existing streets, uh, of
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three lots or less was suggested aetually by an individual Council Member. It should be
emphasized that this deferral pertains only to the proposed improvements along half of the
portions of streets adjacent to the subdivision.
So, now, instead of allowing the deferral, the proposed change would require the frontage
improvements to be installed with the subdivision. It should be noted that subdivisions of four
lots or more currently are required to provide the frontage improvements provided that the
portions of the streets shall have a minimum of 20 feet of pavement. And let me just go over a
hypothetical example of how this works. Let's say there is a property in the agricultural
district, which fronts a road with a right-of-way width of 30 feet. That road right-of-way has,
would have a pavement width of 18 feet let's say for an example. The right-of-way width
required by the Code in an agricultural district is 40 feet. So, any subdivision of three lots or
less would be required to provide a road-widening lot of 5 feet in width if this proposed
amendment is passed.
Also, in the agricultural district, a 20 feet pavement width minimum would be, excuse me,
would be required. So, since the existing pavement width is 18 feet, the subdivider would be
required to bring the additional pavement or the additional pavement width of 2 feet would be
required in order to have at least a minimum of 20 feet of pavement along that frontage in order
for the subdivision to be approved. It should be noted that as of this date, the County has not
collected payments on any of these deferral agreements. The main reason is that there
generally have not been many capital improvement projects to widen and install full frontage
improvements on County roads.
Even on those projects where ful! improvements are implemented, we frankly have not done a
good job of traeking these deferral agreements. There has been discussion of collecting on
deferral agreements along Lower Honoapiilani Road Phase IV; however, we still need to
complete the land aequisition activities before we can implement. Generally, even if the funds
from deferral agreements are collected, these are often small portions of the total project costs
since we are dealing with smaller subdivisions.
Moreover, based on our experience of trying to collect monies after the granting of permit
approvals in, you know, other cases, we are likely to have a difficult time collecting the monies
owed to the County. On the other hand, the deferral agreements as I mentioned only apply to
small subdivisions, three lots or less. If full frontage improvements are required as are
proposed, we would require the subdivider to clear and grade their frontages of any
obstructions. These would include trees, walls, hedges as well as making sure drainage is taken
care of whether it's embankments or gullies that are there need to be ... um ... taken care of.
The subdivider would also be required to instal! the necessary frontage improvements. For
instance, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, may be required in urban districts. In the agricultural
district, minimum pavement width as well as shoulder improvements would be required .
. . .{end a/tape, start 2B at 11:08 a.m.} . .. subdivisions, their, their frontages tend to be shorter
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in, in length. In a number of cases, there are walls, trees, and other private improvements
within the road widening lot, which must be removed. So, basically, from an urban design
standpoint there will be a discontin ... , discontinuity along that roadway since a portion of the
roadway will be indented as compared to neighboring properties.
Electrical improvements may also prove to be costly if subdividers are required to underground
utilizes where prevailing coverage is overhead. And because of the short frontage length, this
may result in little or no reduction in the overhead poles. Generally, frontage improvements
will cost the subdivider more money to install. And if you're talking about a short frontage
length this basically will be of little practical use until comprehensive improvements along the
entire roadway are done. It should also be noted that as subdivision applications are reviewed,
there is often no overall design for the ultimate roadway improvements. So, frontage
improvements installed with these subdivisions mayor may not conform with the even ... ,
eventual design. If they do not then they may have to be redone at some later point in time.
The second proposed amendment is to Section 18.20.040 (B) (3) of the Code. This pertains to
minimum pavement width for a roadway providing access to a subdivision and the in lieu fee
alternative, which is presently allowed by the Code. This in lieu option is $500 multiplied by
the number of lots in the subdivision minus one. And we believe that this in lieu fee is simply
too low in current dollars. Even if the fee is raised the onus would then be on the County to
hire a contractor with the fee received from the developer to actually do the work. And this
proposed amendment would simply have the work done by the subdivider as a part of the
subdivision approval. And the proposed list to require a minimum of 100 lineal feet multiplied
by the number oflots in the subdivision.
However, for your information, whether you retain the in lieu fee or choose to have the
subdivider upgrade the access roadway, the Code presently requires that if in the Director's
opinion the existing access streets are so inadequate as to imperil the public health, safety or
general welfare, the subdivider would provide the minimum conforming width of roadway
along the entire length of the existing street providing access to the subdivision or the Director
shall deny the subdivision.
Let's use, again, you know, hypothetical example. Let's say that there is a seven-lot
subdivision on a road with an 18 feet pavement width providing access. Under the existing
Code, the subdivider may deposit a sum of $3,000 as an in lieu requirement. It's seven minus
one, six lots times $500. Under the proposed amendment, the subdivider may provide
700 lineal feet of improvements, which would bring an 18-foot wide pavement up to 20 feet
wide. So, the subdivider would be, would be providing two feet by 700 feet of new pavement.
A bill for an ordinance amending Chapter 18.20, Maui County Code, pertaining to subdivision
improvements is in your binder for your review, and we're asking for the Committee's
favorable consideration of the above matter. And if you have any questions, I'd be happy to try
to answer.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama [sic]. At this time, I will open the floor for
discussion, Members. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa, thank you very much
for that, for that overview. I just wanted to get clarification. The February 6, 2007 letter, 00,
that you had forwarded regarding this, this bill. One of the items that was recognized on Page 2
of your letter by one of the members of the Subdivision Engineering Standards has to do with
their concern regarding affordable housing projects. Or, and in this case, I think we're
referencing small family subdivisions because there really is no actual, affordable project of
this size. So, because this ordinance has some ramifications on requirements of the subdivider,
I guess, the applicant, well, whatever, whoever they may be. Can you address the impacts of
this ordinance on affordability especially in terms of small family subdivisions?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, there is a section in the Code pertaining to family
subdivisions per se. The proposed amendment you have before you would not affect that
particular provision. That provision is still available to anyone who wants to use it. But it's
basically been used more for estate planning purposes where a family may want to subdivide
property and convey that to their children or relatives and so forth. However, that's only a
deferral until such time that they apply for a building permit or a water meter. And when that
occurs then they will have to comply with the full requirements of the code.
I think what the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee was referring to here is that
when you have small subdivisions of three lots or less you're really affecting the small
subdivider, because if the code, proposed code amendments are passed then we would in, in
effect be requiring all of these frontage improvements, which the subdivider has to pay for
upfront. So that would vary depending on the, you know, the case, the specific case involved.
The length of the frontage, whether it's in the urban district or the ag district, whether they have
to take care of drainage or, or not, but it would be variable. But it would an additional cost that
would be passed on to the subdivider.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Because in, especially in the rural areas, yeah, where a lot of
our County streets are substandard, yeah, and that is so consistent. So, we're looking at
ordinances like this will alleviate the County's need to upgrade our own, our own streets by
adding this cost onto the, the smaller entity wanting to do the, the minimum, the small three-lot
subdivision. So, we're not even talking about shared cost, we're talking about them eating,
eating the cost because they choose to subdivide.
So, I don't know how we can get away with imposing that kind of condition when part of the
problem is ours, yeah, and you have, you know, the, the responsibility of waiving or denying.
So, I don't know what the criteria is that you going to use to levy that judgment on, on a small
independent person, because I don't know what criteria currently exist for you to, you know,
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have a checklist to review and either approve or deny a subdivision. So, I just think, yeah, this
is even going to be more problemsome.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, in, in reviewing this proposed Code amendment, we
hashed it over at least internally and from our standpoint there's really no easy solution per se.
Yes, the Department has, we admit, you know, we haven't done a good job as far as admitting,
as far as enforcing the deferral agreements. But then we are talking about basically small
subdividers that we have to enforce upon. And basically, with the proposed amendment we're
just saying we're going to treat you like any other subdivider who creates additional lots and
you will be required to put in your frontage improvements at your cost before you can get final
subdivision approval.
So, there are some downsides and upsides either way but in the long run it should provide for
frontage improvements that would be paid for by the subdivider, which is what we think, you
know, should be done in, in the, in the long run.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and there, in terms of architectural designs at this point
for the small subdivision there, there are none.
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as the subdivision, when, when we receive a subdivision application, we
oftentimes do not have the building permit plans. A subdivider may just come in and just tell
us how he's going to be subdividing his property and that's all we would require.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, the individuals need to clean out, grade, etcetera is going
to be based on what?
MR. ARAKAWA: Generally, when we accept land, even when we accept the road-widening lot, we
generally would want all of the obstructions removed before the County takes possession,
primarily because of safety or, or liability issues. Obviously, if there's rocks or a wall within
the County right-of-way, if we accept it with that condition it will then be our responsibility to
remove it. So, before we accept it, we would want that obstruction removed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Further questions? Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Director Arakawa, in listening to my
colleague's questions, one, I, I know in previous items before the Committee your Department
has stated difficulty in I guess, I don't even know how to word this, but it will, maybe I could,
should say your, your Department has difficulty in capturing the deferred amount when the
County was ready to move and do the road-widening improvements. So, I can understand why
you would like us to consider this proposal this morning.
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If you get the money upfront you're basing it on the current pricing, so it may not be sufficient
if we do the project five years down the road. And, and that's not of, of a concern to the
Department of when we would take the money versus when we do the project?
MR. ARAKAWA: The current deferral agreement basically doesn't have a timeframe on it per se. So,
when we decide to collect, we would have to come up with some value of the frontage
improvements at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: Now, if you're thinking about requiring an in lieu fee, for instance at the building
permit or I mean at the subdivision approval, that is another matter that is not part of the
proposed amendment. But maybe Corporation Counsel can expand on a little bit, too. But
once we collect that money prior to subdivision approval, it could be construed as an impact fee
whereby once we collect it we'd have a certain timeframe in which to expend it. And may,
maybe I should refer that question more to Corp. Counsel for their consideration.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Young.
MS. YOUNG: I'm sorry. Your, your, could you repeat the question for me?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm just, my question is whether or not it's fair to collect the money
upfront since, if the County chooses to defer the, the improvement project years down the road
then what we collect upfront may not be a fair pro rata share when we actually do the project.
But maybe that would be better since the Director has already informed us he has difficulty
capturing those deferred payments. So, uuless you pay you don't get subdivision approval. I,
you know, as, as another way to get conformity. You don't pay you don't get subdivision. And
so, I just was wondering whether or not you get any comments about if that would be an issue
for us.
MS. YOUNG: If the Committee wanted to require the payment of a particular fee upfront versus
getting it at the point when we improve the property. I, I know as an analogy, I know for
example for traffic impact fees, there is a certain time provided and then it's a statutory
requirement where we have to use the monies that would be assessed in the, for a traffic impact
fee. I, I'm not sure in this situation. I'd have to research that. But I, I would note that, I think
the reason why the, the current provision is the way it is in part at least is because the way it's
set forth is that it's based on the actual cost of the improvement and there are certain criteria
involved or requirements involved when you're, when you're determining, determining or
calculating the fee. And, and that would be in part based on the actual cost, which you
wouldn't know until the roadway was actually, the contract went out to do the roadway, yeah.
So ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's true--

- 36-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
July 5, 2007

MS. YOUNG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --if we defer the project. Yeah. But if we would say we wanted it
at the time of subdivision then we would use current cost because it's still up to the County
when we do the project.
MS. YOUNG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, if we do it the same calendar year or whatever that the guy is
paying his fees, you know, because other than that I would think we would put it in a trust and
agency account and, and collect short tenn interest through the Department of Finance. But,
you know, I appreciate your comments. Would we consider this proposal also because I have a
concern of how people going to circumvent this if this moves forward? Can we make it so that
if you do a property regime and you create three so called developable structures or, or
improvements that this could also be considered as part of this ordinance proposal? Because
I'm sure one smart attorney is going to say, hey, if we do a property regime, guys, you know,
we still get only one lot but we get, you know, three, four, five owners and we can do three,
four, five things on the lot and don't have to pay this. And that wouldn't be right to those that
do the actual subdivision. What's, what's, either the Department or Corp. Counsel, any
comments?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, I know this whole issue about condominium property
regimes has raised its head before. I think the language in here could be clarified in order to
ensure that, you know, that kind of abuse will not happen. As far as we are concerned, the
subdivision process would be separate from, you know, CPR. And the CPR would not trump,
you know, what we have in the subdivision code. So, if that's your understanding I don't have
any problem with making that clear, you know, in the proposed amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate that, Mr. Arakawa. Corp. Counsel, you have any
comments you would share with the Committee regarding this concern of mine?
MS. YOUNG: If the Committee wanted to revise the, the bill accordingly to apply, to have the bill
apply also to, to the dwell ... , to dwelling units versus lots. And I'd refer your attention to
Section 18.04.470, which defmes the tenn subdivision, which the, the intention of this
language, and I believe my understanding is that it was amended to include condominiumized
property. So, we could, we could revise the bill accordingly to require condominiurnized
properties with multiple structures or dwellings to have this requirement apply to them as well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And, Chairman, another question, please.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead.

- 37-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
July 5,2007

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I noticed in, in your ramseyered format, you specifically adding
language for a subdivided parcel used for a church. And so, I'm just wondering why you had
specifically proposed the language before this Committee in this manner.
MR. ARAKAWA: For churches, my understanding is that we are basically proposing no change.
Churches would presently be required to provide the road-widening lot-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: --but they are not required to provide the frontage improvements. So that would
remain the same under this proposed bill for an ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And for regular church activities, I, I can see an argument to
support that position. But my understanding, let's say for an example, First Assembly at
Puunene, Dairy Road, they have I believe industrial zoning, yeah, beside the church. So, why
would the County exempt that industrial zoning portion of the frontage improvements? I can
see for the church for the actual church uses and church purposes. But they have, and
requested and I think, believe they received zoning that grants them more than just church
activities. You know they have in that, you know, and that's why they wanted that so-called
industrial designation. And, you know, to be fair to the other trust and foundations that do
eleemosynary activities, I don't think they get the same benefit. So, why would we grant a
church that has designation of land use of a higher use category be able to be exempted from
this ordinance proposal?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, I think you raise a good point. There have been
churches, which is basically just a place for worship as a structure but there are also
church-related activities that may be on the same property. And we've always had this issue
about whether or not, you know, this particular provision would apply. There may be
preschools and, and you find some churches getting involved with a lot more business activities
as well. So, I, you know, if, if the Council is asking whether or not you want to know how
we've interpreted in the past, I, I suppose we could answer that in writing to, you know, to
further clarify that. And if, amendment, further amendment is needed as far as the clarification
of churches, we, we certainly wouldn't mind that clarification as well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Chairman, thank you very much for my opportunity.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Director, I know we've had this discussion in, you
know, trying to retrieve deferrals. Have we ever looked at the possibility of including in the
property's deed whenever these deferrals come into light when we do road improvement
projects that we utilize the deed as, as a means of collecting monies for the present cost to do
these road improvements?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Pontanilla, in the deferral agreement that we require presently, the
agreement itself makes notice that this obligation to the County transfers on to successors,
assigns, or whoever they sell the, the property to. And it is recorded in the Bureau of
Conveyances. However, our, our experience has been, you know, unless, you know, there's
leverage in collecting the money like in a case where an applicant has to get an approval from
the County, they will pay before they get the approval. But if we have to chase after people to
obtain the money, many times we're going to be dealing with not the original subdivider. The,
you know, the property may have already changed hands a number of times, and financial
situations of the, you know, the subsequent owners may be different from the subdivider. And
those are the types of situations that we have difficulty actually collecting. So, I think if, even
if you put it as part of the deed, we would be trying to collect this money after our approval and
our leverage is relatively minimal at, at the subsequent time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I would think before a property owner purchased a
property that, you know, everything is brought up forward such that the property owner would
know that there is some other costs that might be involved in the future. Have we ever gone
out and I guess try to collect from individuals and, and those individuals, you know, refuse to
comply, have we taken anybody to court?
MR. ARAKAWA: Not that I'm aware of. I think I mentioned that we're, we're looking at this Lower
Honoapiilani Road Phase IV Project is trying to enforce these deferral agreements. We still
have some properties that we still have to execute a partial taking and so that's basically what's
holding us up. But we're going to try and collect from a set of owners that have executed
deferral agreements there and we'll see how that goes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. One, one more question.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Corporation Counsel.

CPRs versus partition is there any difference?

Maybe

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: Thank you. Condominium Property Regimes or CPRs are actually typically applied
for by the owner of the property versus partitions are typically court actions where there's
numerous owners and they can't agree as to what, what happens to the property. So, in those
cases at times court will institute partition. It will be applied for by the, one or more of the
owners will institute action and then the court may, may choose to institute partition.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, when, whenever they're partitioned, do they abide by
providing road improvements? Let's say they partitioned off ten acres into maybe four
different parcels.
MS. YOUNG: Well, I know currently when partitions, court partitions when they require some sort of
a division of the land, the court, the, the partition will go through the subdivision process and
whatever requirements may apply, depending on the size and, and the type of subdivision it is,
those would be applied to, to that, to that partition, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So that's when we catch it then.
MS. YOUNG: That's correct. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. Question probably for Corp. Counsel more than
Mr. Arakawa. Ms. Young, you know, I've noticed that we have various financial requirements
in lieu of if you don't do this you pay us that and I know this is following the similar lines.
However is there a possibility that some kind of bond issuance would be put in where upfront
you know that money is there and if they do not perform or they do not comply that instead of
chasing people, a bond would be then readily available for the County to collect on. I know
that's just another step but again if people are not complying and, and being unreasonable and
we're trying to collect after the fact it just doesn't make good sense. From a business
standpoint that's what bonds are all about. So, would that be something that we could institute
as part of this, this code or, or this ordinance? Is that a possibility?
MS. YOUNG: I think if, if a fee were the way that you wanted to progress. Like for example if you
wanted to revise the $500 amount in the, in 18.20.040 (B) (3), excuse me, then that could, that
total amount could be bonded, that is something that you could require. Again, I think the
reason why the first amount, the deferred amount isn't bonded is because we don't, we
wouldn't know the amount to be bonded until the roadway improvement were further along in
the process.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead, Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: May I also add to that, Mr. Chair? If the, a bond requirement is being
contemplated, you should also be aware that there is a cost to the subdivider that they have to
pay to actually carry the bond. So, I just want to make sure that, you know, if, if you do want
to do that there is a cost. And if we are not certain when we'll cash it, you know, that cost will
be carried on for or could be carried on for quite some time.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I understand that. I just feel like the County has been put with the burden
of chasing for whatever is due to us after the fact. And you've just stated and some of the
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Members have stated that maybe the property changes hands once or twice before we even get
to that determination. And, and, and somebody or somebodies have made money and leaving
us stuck with the bill. So, again, if initially we had some kind of methodology to protect the
County that's all I'm looking for, whether it's a bond, an assessment. But I'm kind of getting
tired of chasing people and then not getting anything what is due. And, you know, even if it's a
small percentage that percentage hurts the people ofMaui County. Mr. Hokama? I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no, Chairman, I, I thought that was a good option you just
proposed.... (end a/tape, start 3A at 11:39 a.m.) . .. I would say if the County would perform
within a reasonable timeframe let's say within five, a five-year period maybe a bond might be
an option we would wish to consider. My only concern would be, as the Director stated, that if
we don't do the improvement 10, 15, 20 years, you know, would that be fair to those that
posting the bond since it needs to be carried for 10, 15, 20 years? So, maybe another way is, I
would assume that what we have currently, Corporation Counsel, the County already has the
ability to put a lien on the property is that a reasonable understanding of this Committee? That
if we have a hard time collect or they refuse to pay, we can lien the actual property?
MS. YOUNG: Well, that would, that would require us to institute again a court action and go through
that court process. You know on the issue of the bond I guess the, kind of the question mark in
that, in that proposal would be that typically when we have an amount usually there's a basis
for that amount either by study or some kind of analysis done by the Department. So that
would, that would be the question mark is if what would the amount be and how would that be
calculated?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I'm more concerned about whether or not we, we can lien the
property, because if we can lien the property and incorporate in the next following year's
property tax payment to the County then that's another way to capture the, the, the required
dollar amount. And if they don't pay, we can always foreclose and sell the property at the
worse scenano.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Corp. Counsel?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, is, is, do we need to put that as, have that put into this proposal
or is that already assumed an actual that the County can put a lien, place a lien to recover
deferred payments when the County is ready to move forward?
MS. YOUNG: Yeah, if! could just take a moment to confer with, to look at HR ... , there's, I know
there's a recent revision on counties placing liens but it, I, I can't recall the provisions. If I
could just take a moment to research.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: At the ...
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, and Chairman, I would just ask, I would ask what would be
your recommendation because I think we need to work on this proposal additionally?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, I, the feeling I get and my recommendation at this point and
this would be up to the Committee but I would rather defer this matter until we get these
questions answered, because I think is a very important step and we don't want to do it
haphazard. We want to do it correctly. And I think Ms. Young needs some more time to delve
into these changes. So, my recommendation is to defer this matter and I leave it to the
Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would support you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I would support that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I would support.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And so we'll defer this matter and bring it back at another
time when we gotten the answers that were asked by the Committee Members. Yeah. Thank
you, gentlemen.

ACTION:

PWF-44

DEFER.

REOUIREMENTS FOR CLEANING AND MAINTENANCE OF SIDEWALKS
(C.c. No. 07-191)

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Moving right along, we have PWF-44. The Committee is in receipt of a
County Communication No. 07-191, from the Director of Public Works and Environmental
Management, transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING CHAPTER 12.02, MAUl COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO CLEANING
AND MAINTENANCE OF SIDEWALKS". The purpose of the proposed bill is to require
owners of agricultural lots of 15 acres or less to be responsible for cleaning and maintenance of
sidewalks areas fronting their property. At this time, I would look for any public testimony.
Pauline, any ... anyone signed up?
MS. MARTINS: No.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Anyone in the gallery would like to give public testimony? If not, if it is
the will of the Committee, I'd like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: No objections. Thank you. At this time, I'll ask Mr. Arakawa to give us
an overview of this ordinance.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The purpose of the proposed bill is to require owners of
agricultural lots of 15 acres or less in size to be responsible for, for cleaning and maintaining
the sidewalk area in front of their property. The sidewalk area is defined in Chapter 12.02,
Maui County Code, as the portion of the street between a curb line or pavement of the road and
the adjacent property line. The County of Maui currently maintains sidewalks on agricultural
lots, which exceed two acres by trimming overgrown vegetation so that roads are safe for
public use. However in recent years, we have seen an increasing number of residential homes
being erected on smaller agricultural lots thus the emphasis has shifted from using flail mowers
and brush cutters to control weeds and vegetation to manicured landscaping along the sidewalk
much like you would see in more urbanized areas.
Since homeowners within the urban and rural district are responsible for maintaining the
sidewalk area along their frontage, the proposed bill would also require that owners of
agricultural lots of 15 acres or less would have that same responsibility. As far as why 15 acres
was chosen as the cutoff, we basically used the agricultural allocation formula in the County
Agricultural District Zoning as a guide. In Section 19.30A.030 (G) of the Code, there is a
category of two-acre minimum lot size, which defines the maximum number of lots, which can
be created in a subdivision application. The next higher category is a IS-acre minimum lot
size, which further restricts the number of new lots, which could be created. A bill for an
ordinance amending Chapter 12.02, Maui County Code, pertaining to cleaning and maintaining
sidewalks has been drafted and is in your binders. We request the Committee's favorable
consideration on this matter.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Committee Members, questions? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa, thank you. Then
does the, the maintenance then of sidewalks fronting these people, these people's properties
also include liability?
MS. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, if, ifI may? It's, it's very difficult to say on, on issues ofliability because it
would really be dependent on the facts and, and what occurred and, and the specif. .. , and the
specifics of that particular case. We would note that even though it's the adjacent landowners'
responsibility to generally to maintain the sidewalks and, and in this, and if this bill passed it
would also apply to more of the agricultural lots as well. Even though they would be
maintaining the sidewalk it would still be our property. So, if the question is whether or not
someone could make a claim against that the answer would be yes. Whether or not that person
would be successful in maintaining that claim against that that would be based on the specific
facts of the case.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And then as a follow-up then what would the
penalty be if they don't maintain and who's, who's, from the Department, plans on enforcing
this ordinance?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as the cleaning and maintaining sidewalks, there is the procedure set out in
Chapter 12.02. And basically it's our Highways Division that would do the maintenance of the,
maintenance of the frontage.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, so, it, it's all going to be complaint-generated to, to have
enforcement take place to, to penalize or it is the road Highway people who's going to just let
the Department know that there is non-compliance with the ordinance or how is it handled?
MR. ARAKAWA: Generally, in the past it's been complaint-based but during this past budget the
Council approved a, an Inspector for our Highways Division. And this is what the Inspector is
going to be doing is patrolling the, the, the frontages of not only properties in the Ag District
but in the Urban District as well for obstructions or whether or not there's proper maintenance
along that County frontage. So, once we get that Inspector on board, they can better enforce
the provisions of 12.02.
And basically, just ... urn ... the Inspector would go out, do a site visit and we'd have to
provide a written notice to the owner to give them a chance to clean up the frontage first.
Failing that then we would then go in and maintain the frontage for them and I believe bill them
for our, our services.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Director, in regards to maintaining sidewalks. I read the
definition. It's, is a pavement towards the property line and this is taking away brush and any
obstructions. The any obstructions like abandoned vehicles for instance who would be
responsible to remove abandoned vehicles, white goods in this case here?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, abandoned vehicles would be covered separately. Basically, the vehicles
would need to be tagged by the Police Department first as abandoned or derelict. And then
basically the Solid Waste Division or the Department of Environmental Management has a tow
contract to remove these vehicles that are on public roadways and then they are processed in
accordance with DOH regs.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Similar to boulders, then.
MR. ARAKAWA: Bould ... , in the case of boulders or rocks, wall obstructions within the
right-of-way, our Highways Division would take care of obstructions like, like those.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And erosion controls as well?
MR. ARAKAWA: Erosion control, yeah, Highways Division would probably have some ... urn ...
review on that. Prob ... , if it's a huge erosion problem, we probably want to get our
Engineering Division involved to review why that has happened I guess and then what kind of
remedial measures may be appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, we're looking probably at minor maintenance and like
shrubberies, things like that rather than the abandoned vehicles, boulders, erosion...
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. Yes. That's what this proposed amendment to the Code is pertaining to is
basically landscaping and grass within your frontage of your property.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, Mr. Director, wouldn't this be more appropriate if we maybe
expand the scope to also include right-of-ways or easements? Besides I mean, you know, right
now it's just sidewalks. We're talking about sidewalks. You know but on Lanai we got issues
with areas that are public right, County right-of-ways, easements ... urn ... 33 rd Street on our
island that you, your Department is very aware of and I'm just wondering if, would that be an
appropriate consideration for us?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe we would have to repost because this agenda is such very
narrow on cross ... , on sidewalks but is the prob ... , you know, the problem for us on Lanai is on
right-of-ways and easements besides cross ... , sidewalks, excuse me.
MR. ARAKAWA: Gen ... , Councilmember Hokama, generally, the definition of sidewalk is fairly
broad because it is the area between the pavement and the adjacent property line. And it does
not, and when you, I know when you think of sidewalk you basically are thinking about a
concrete sidewalk, but in this case it's defined as just that general area between the edge of the
pavement or the curb line and the adjacent property line. There are, I know on Lanai there are
other cases where there are I believe your referring to drainage easements that are not in the
County roadway per se. In those types of cases, we would be, those would be subject to
basically the County's drainage rules. So, basically, you cannot just obstruct any drainage way
whenever any-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
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MR. ARAKA WA: --a property owner would feel like it. You have to make sure that whatever you do
to the drainage way is properly maintained so that there's no adverse effect upon any
downstream owners. And we do have provisions in place for that and that's something that we
have to enforce from time to time because there are, you know, overgrown vegetation or-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MR. ARAKAWA: --obstructions placed within drainage easements.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can you pave over that drainage way as long as the water, and, and
provided the water still runs, the sheet flow still runs according to the drainage plan?
MR. ARAKAWA: It depends on the drainage analysis. You know the basic criteria would be that
whatever you do you cannot have an adverse effect upon adjacent or downstream properties.
So, I guess if you have a specific ... urn ... instance of that occurring, we should probably go
out and take a look at it then, then we can make a judgment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good. On the next visit to Lanai, I have a very good one that two
directors ago chose to approve a paving of a community drainage-way that was in existence
from the time we built the city, Dole, Jim Dole built the city. And I have issues with those
properties that are below, now that paved drainage-way that was requested by my favorite
company on the island. Other than that the penalties is just a fine as well as recapturing the
cost of the County doing the, the work itself? Is that a good understanding of this Committee?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. The fine, subject to a fine not exceeding $100 or imprisoned for a period not
exceeding 30 days or both for each violation in addition to recovering the cost of the clean up
should the property owner decide not to clean up his frontage.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I would think the 30 days, you know, can make sense to me
but the $100. I mean shouldn't the dollar fine be equivalent to the jail time? I mean for some
they're going to say $100, huh, let the County do 'em I'll pay $100. So, oh, but they would
still have to reimburse the County?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. ARAKAWA: They would still have to reimburse the County for our cost. We're, you know, the,
the date when these fines were established was quite some time ago, 1984. So we're certainly
open to an increase.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, we would, we would be open to a recommendation from
your, your Department, work with Corp. Counsel on what would be appropriate amendments to
the fines, fines provision of this specific Code section. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions? Sensing none, I will, I guess,
recommend passage of the proposed bill on first reading and filing of this item. Do I hear a
motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, short recess.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Recess called at the Chair's discretion.... (gaveV ...
RECESS:

11:57 a.m.

RECONVENE:

12:00 p.m.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gaveV . .. Reconvening the meeting. The Chair would like now to
maybe change the position as far as acceptance, and actually defer this matter because there are
some legal issues that has been brought to our attention that we need to address. So if it is the
will of the Committee, I would like to recommend deferral.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT: HOKAMA, MATEO,
PONTANILLA, AND VICTORINO)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, gentlemen.

PWF-28

ACCEPTING LAND DEDICATED FOR PARK AND PLAYGROUND PURPOSES
AND WAIVING CERTAIN PARK DEDICATION REOUIREMENTS FOR THE
ALII VILLAGE SUBDIVISION (KIHEI) (C.C. No. 06-57)

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I'd now like to go back to PWF-28. The Chair will be entertaining a
motion to recommend adoption of the draft resolution being distributed at this time, which
rather, which further revises the revised proposed resolution transmitted by correspondence
dated July 2,2007. I will give everybody a ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, would vou like a motion so we can have discussion on
this matter?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, I would like to have a motion so we can discuss this matter.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, gentlemen. At this time, if you'd like to ask questions of
Corporation Counsel. And actually, Corporation Counsel, Mr. Hopper, would you kindly read
the revision so that the public and I would, and the Committee would understand the revisions
as you have proposed it.
MR. HOPPER: Certainly, Mr. Chair. The, the revisions I recommended were to the, they're in bold
face in the copies you have. The resolution that was transmitted to you originally and that was
made available to the public was a bit different. The first change was made in the second
whereas clause. The second whereas clause in the resolution would read as follows: whereas
in order to meet the requirements of Section 18.16.320, Maui County Code, requiring the
dedication of lands for parks and playground purposes, the subdivider proposes to dedicate in
fee simple to the County of Maui that certain land situated in Kihei, Maui, Hawaii
compromising [sic] approximately 9,027 square feet as shown and depicted on Exhibit A
attached hereto and made a part hereof, hereinafter called the park parcel, which along with a
cash contribution in the amount of $16,351.50, which the subdivider has agreed to provide will
fulfill all of the requirements of Section 18.16.320, Maui County Code.
The second revision is to the first clause in the resolution where it states that: be it resolved by
the County of, by the Council of the County of Maui, one, that the Council herein accepts the
park parcel to be dedicated in fee simple for park and playground purposes thereby fulfilling all
of the requirements of Section 18.16.320, Maui County Code, when combined with the cash
payment of $16,351.50. This revision, as the Council recommended, specifies that along with
the cash contribution, this dedication is in full satisfaction of the requirements of the Maui
County Code.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Any discussion on the revisions? Mr. Hokama? Oh, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. As our Corporation Counsel read the first or
second whereas in regards to the changes that were made, I thought I heard in the first sentence
dedication oflands for parks and playground purposes.
MR. HOPPER: I'm sorry if I did state that, that was incorrect. It does read, requiring the dedication of
lands for parks and playgrounds.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Thank you for that clarification.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Hokama?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I can support this re ... , re ... , this draft proposal, Chairman. I think
it's now very clear what the Committee is, is considering before us at this time with the motion,
and I am satisfied that, you know, if the public does take, take a look at this document, it is very
clear what the Committee is recommending to Council for acceptance and approval. Thank
you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any further discussion? Mr. Hopper?
MR. HOPPER: Just for future reference. This is not the first time where there's been a cash
contribution along with land. This is, I would presume how the Council would prefer to have
the ordinances drafted in the futnre as well.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I think that's correct. Thank you, Mr. Hopper. Any further discussion?
Seeing none. I will call for the vote. All those in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Opposed?

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Mateo, and
Co-Chair Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Ponta~IIa;

and

Co-Chair Medeiros.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPT REVISED RESOLUTION AND FILE COMMUNICATION.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Let the record show four are for, one excused, Mr. Medeiros. Okay,
gentlemen, I think we've reached the end. And any announcements?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, yes. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. For the Land Use Committee, we do have a
site inspection this afternoon and I think the request is to meet in the back ofWalmart at 1:30.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. I was going to announce that but since you did, thank you for
saving me that. If not, I will ask to close this meeting, and meeting adjourned. . .. (gavel) ...
ADJOURN: 12:08 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

BfLLKAUAKEA MEDEIROS, Co-Chair
Public Works and Facilities Committee

APPROVED BY:

MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, Co-Chair
Pnblic Works and Facilities Committee
Transcribed by: Cathy Simmons
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